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Independent auditor’s report

To the Members of Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Development
Bank of Jamaica Limited (the Company) as at 31 March 2022, and of its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and
with the requirements of the Jamaican Companies Act.

What we have audited

The Company's financial statements comprise:

+ the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022;

» the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
* the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended,;

s the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

¢ the notes to the financial statements, which include significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our

responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial staternents section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the international Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (including International independence Standards) issued by the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants (IESBA Code). We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code.

Responsibilities of management for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and with the requirements of the Jamaican
Companies Act, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with 1SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controi.

» Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
hased on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.
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Report on other legal and Eé-ulatdry' requirements
As required by the Jamaican Companies Act, we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

in our opinion, proper accounting records have been kept, so far as appears from our examination of
those records, and the accompanying financial statements are in agreement therewith and give the
information required by the Jamaican Companies Act, in the manner so required.

D

HL-CAMOJ’CAO @é;
Chartered Accountgts 40 %

Kingston, Jamaica
30 June 2022



Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Statement of Comprehensive Income
Year ended 31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Operating Income
Interest income
Interest expense
Net interest income
Appreciation in fair value on investment property
Gain on sale of investments
Discount on financial assets
Other income

Operating Expenses

Staff costs

Impairment (loss)/gain on financial asset
Other operating expenses

Operating Profit
Share of losses of associates
Net Profit

Other comprehensive income, net of taxes
Items that will never be reclassified to statement of
comprehensive income

Re-measurement of employee benefits asset
Realised fair value (loss)/gain on investment through other
comprehensive income

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Total other comprehensive income
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

*Restated — See note 28.

Note

13

17

24(a)
19

RESTATED *
2022 2021
$'000 $:000

1,418,674 1,391,564

(628,602) (599,979)
790,072 791,585
200,541 10,514

. 173,995
89,649 (263,270)

1,029,300 623,264

2,109,562 1,336,088

(733,989) (703,960)

(140,803) 119,108

(337,253) (371,564)

(1,212,045) (956,416)
897,517 379,672
(16,352) (65,815)
881,165 313,857
(11,700) (5,032)
(230,847) 549,301
96,304 137,922

(146,243) 682,191

734,922 996,048




Development Bank of Jamaica Limited
Statement of Financial Position

31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Note
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 9
Reversa repurchase agreements 10
Investment securities 11
Investment properties 12
Investment in associates 13
Loans receivables, net of impairment allowance 14
Due from Government of Jamaica 15
Due from Credit Enhancement Facility Fund 28
Other receivables 18
Employee benefit asset 17
intangible assets 18
Property, plant and equipment 18
Taxation recoverable
LIABILITIES
Loans payables 20
Other 21
SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY
Share capital 22
Share premium 22
Capital reserves 23
Other reserves 24
Retained earnings

RESTATED* RESTATED*

2022 2021 2020
$'000 $000 $:000
1,637,393 1706290 1222674
10,896,762 5,799,782 7,095,295
4223975 4275822 3,232,035
1,143 655 943,114 932,600
1407,865 1,114,368 1,121,408
15,549,073 16,132,232 15,827,416
1,041,870 915,387 772,142
18,711 32,405 18,251
1636,162 3,031,965 1,743,160
424,896 422,632 417,380
4,537 7,660 16,824
1,619,843 1543441 1,421,797
241,780 454,907 393,038
39,846,522 36,378,808 _ 34,313,018
24725493 21,857,080 20,772,959
892,754 791,306 737,427
25618,247 22648386 _ 21,510,386
1,767,639 1,757,539 1,757,539
98,856 98,856 98,856
1233248 1,297,509 1,212,761
5760809 5860793 5,196,654
5377733 4706723 4,536,822
14228275 _ 13730420 _ 12,802,632
30,846,522 36,378,806 34,313,018

Approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 23 June 2022 and signed on its behalf by:

AT

Paul B. Scott Director

*Restated — See note 28.

M. Anthony Shaw

Managing Director



Development Bank of Jamaica Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity

Year ended 31 March 2022

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 3

Balances at 31 March 2020
Effect of Restatement

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year
Effect of restatement
Restated profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Remeasurement of
employee benefils
obligation

Net change in fair value of
investment securities

Sumplus on revaluation of
property plant and
equipment

Total other comprehensive income for
the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year

Transfers

Transfer to technical reserve

Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity

Dividends
Restated Balance at 31 March 2021

Note

28

17

24(a)

19

24(f)

25

Share Share Capital Other  Retained
Capital Premium Reserves Reserves Earnings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,757,539 98,866 1,212,761 5773742 4536822 13,379,720
- - - (577,088) - (677,088}
1,757,539 98,856 1,212,761 5196654 4,536,822 12,802,632
- . - - 495,832 495,832
- 5 = - {181,975)  (181,975)
- - - - 313,857 313,857
. - = {6,032) - (5,032)
- - - 549,301 - 549,301
- - - 137,922 - 137,922
- - - 682,191 - 682,191
- - - 682,191 313,857 996,048
- - 84,748 {9,052)  {108,956) (32,260)
- - 84,748 {9,052) _ (108,956) (32,260)
- - - - (35,000) (35,000)
1,757,539 98,856 1,297,509 5,869,793 4,706,723 13,730,420




Development Bank of Jamaica Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2022

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)
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Restated Balances at 31 March 2021
Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
Remeasurement of employee
benefits obligation
Net change in fair value of investment
securities
Surplus on revaluation of

property plant and
equipment

Total other comprehensive income for
the year

Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the
year

Transfers
Amortisation of grants
Transfer to technical reserve
Transactions with owners, recognised
directly in equity
Dividends
Balance at 31 March 2022

Note

17

24(a)

19

24(f)

25

Share Share Capital Other Retained
Capital Premium Reserves Reserves Earings Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,757,539 98,856 1,207,509 5,869,793 4,706,723 13,730,420
- - - - B81,165 881,165
- - - (11,700} - (11,700)
- - - (230,847) - (230,847)
- - - 96,304 - 96,304
- - - (146,243} - (146,243)
- - - (146,243) 881,165 734,922
. - (64,437) : - (64437)
- - 176 37,349 (176,155) (138,630)
- - (64,261) 37,349  (176,155)  (203,067)
- - . - {34,000} {34,000)
1,757,639 98,856 1,233,248 5,760,809 5,377,733 14,228,275
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Statement of Cash Flows
Year ended 31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

RESTATED
Note 2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Profit for the year 881,165 313,857
Adjustments for:
Amortisation 18 8,757 9,009
Depreciation 19 36,553 37,798
Interest income (1,418,675) (1,391,564)
Interest expense 628,602 599,979
Allowance for impairment losses (64,853) (119,108)
Foreign exchange gains (214,495) (144,453)
Discount on advance to associated companies (222,191) 28,630
Change in employee benefits asset {13,964) (10,284)
Share of losses in associated companies 13 16,352 65,663
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 6 - {1,685)
Gain on disposal of investments - (173,995)
Surplus on revaluation of investment properties, net 12 (200,541) (10,514)
Amortisation (64,437) -
(627,727) (796,525)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Loans receivable — Movement during year 1,110,513 467,486
Due from Government of Jamaica (126,483) (3,548)
Income tax recoverable 213,130 (61,872)
Credit Enhancement Fund 13,694 -
Other receivables 1,392,846 {1,244,361)
Reserve fund utilised {138,630) -
QOther liabilities 101,005 53,879
1,938,348 (1,584,841)
Interest received 1,406,708 1,397,552
Interest paid (601,024) (587,740)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 2,744 032 (775,129)




Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Year ended 31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars uniess otherwise indicated)
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Note

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Resale agreements
Investment securities, net
Interest in associates companies
Dividends received
Purchase of intangible assets 18
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 19
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of
Net cash (used in)/provided by investing activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Loans received
Loans repaid
Dividends paid 25
Net cash provided by/{used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at the year end 9

RESTATED
2022 2021
$'000 $'000

(4,915,407) 1,614,510
8,249 (620,198)

(75,083) (46,679)
(22,539) 20,864
(5,634) (845)
(16,651) (21,900)

- 2,075

- 563,626
(5,027,066) 1,511,453
5,000,000 2,713,400
(2,681,919) (2,901,409)
(34,000) (35,000)
2,284,081 (223,009)
1,046 (513,315)
(68,943) (30,699)
1,705,290 1,222 674
1,637,393 1,705,290
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1. Identification and Principal Activities

The Development Bank of Jamaica Limited (“the Bank”) was established on 1 April 2000 and is domiciled in
Jamaica and its registered office is located at 11A-15 Oxford Road, Kingston 5, Jamaica.

On 24 July 2009, the Bank issued shares to the Accountant General, in trust for the Capital Development Fund,
as compensation for an amount of $1,727,539,000 which represented the acquisition of certain assets and
liabilities of the National Investment Bank of Jamaica Limited (NIBJ).

The primary business activity of the Bank is Development Banking.

The Bank is exempt from income tax under Section 12 1(b) of the Income Tax Act.

The Bank has interests in certain associated companies (Note 13) all of which are incorporated and domiciled in
Jamaica. The ones currently in operation are as follows:

Percentage Financial

Name of Investee Principal Activities Holding Year End
Harmonisation Limited and its Property development 50%  March 31
(i) 100% subsidiary:
Silver Sands Estate Limited Rental of resort 50%  March 31
accommodation

(i) 49% associated Bank:
Harmony Cove Limited Property development 24% March31

The other 50% of Harmonisation Limited (*Harmonisation”} is owned by the National Housing Trust, a statutory
body.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1.

Identification and Principal Activities (Continued)

Harmonisation entered into a Joint Venture Agreement and a Members’ Agreement with Tavistock Group Inc. to
develop lands owned by Harmonisation in Trelawny, Jamaica. The development will be done through
Harmony Cove Limited (“Harmony”), of whose ordinary share capital Tavistock Group inc. owns 51%, with
Harmonisation owning the remaining 49%. The lands owned by Harmonisation were valued at US$45,000,000
for the purpose of their transfer-in valueto Harmony Cove Limited under the Joint Venture Agreement, dated
September 28, 2006.

The joint venture agreement with Tavistock Group Inc. was amended on February 3, 2009 to reflect contribution
by Harmonisation, through its subsidiary, Silver Sands Estate Limited, of additional parceis of lands. In
consideration of the transfer of these additional lands, Harmonisation shall be deemed to have subscribed for
cumulative preference shares to be issued by Tavistock Group Inc. in the amount of US$6,662,460.

Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Basis of preparation
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with, and comply with, International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB). The financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
investment securities at fair value through other comprehensive income, investment property and certain
property and equipment at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Bank's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions or estimates are significant to the financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

Standards, interpretations and amendments to published accounting standards effective in the
current financial year

Certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards have been published that
became effective during the current financial period. The Bank has assessed the relevance of all such new
standards, interpretations and amendments and has concluded that the following are relevant to its
cperations;

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 4, and IFRS 16 - Interest rate benchmark reform — Phase 2 (effective
1 January 2021)

The Phase 2 amendments address issues that arise from the implementation of the reforms, including the
replacement of one benchmark with an alternative one. The Phase 2 amendments provide additional
temporary reliefs from applying specific IAS 39 and IFRS 9 hedge accounting requirements to hedging
relationships directly affected by IBOR reform,
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
{a) Basis of preparation (continued)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have
not been early adopted by the Bank

At the date of authorisation of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been issued which are not effective at the date of the statement of
financial position, and which the Bank has not early adopted. The Bank has assessed the relevance of all
such new standards, interpretations and amendments, has determined that the following may be relevant to
its operations, and has concluded as follows:

Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’ (effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022) update a reference in IFRS 3 to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting without changing the
accounting requirements for business combinations.

Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’ combinations’ (effective for periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022) prohibit a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the asset for its intended use.
Instead, a company will recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss.

Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets' combinations’
{effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022) specify which costs a company includes when
assessing whether a contract will be loss-making.

Annual improvements make minor amendments to IFRS 1, 'First-time Adoption of IFRS’, IFRS 9, 'Financial
instruments’, IAS 41, ‘Agriculture’ and the lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, 'Leases’.

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements’, on classification of liabilities (Deferred
until accounting periods starting not earlier than 1 January 2024) These narrow-scope amendments to IAS 1,
‘Presentation of financial statements’, clarify that liabilities are classified as either current or non-current,
depending on the rights that exist at the end of the reporting period. Classification is unaffected by the
expectations of the entity or events after the reporting date (for example, the receipt of a waiver or a breach of
covenant). The amendment also clarifies what IAS 1 means when it refers to the ‘settlement’ of a liability.

Narrow scope amendments to IAS 1, Practice statement 2 and IAS 8 (effective for periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2023). The amendments aim to improve accounting policy disclosures and to help users of the
financial statements to distinguish between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies.

Amendment to IAS 12 — deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising from a single transaction 8
(effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023). These amendments require companies to
recognise deferred tax on transactions that, on initial recognition give rise to equal amounts of taxable and
deductible temporary differences.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(b) Basis of consolidation

(c)

Associates
Associates are all entities over which the Bank has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.

The Bank’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Bank's share of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Bank does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Bank and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Bank's interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.

The Bank determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that investments in
associates are impaired. If this is the case, the Bank recognises an impairment charge in the income
statement for the difference between the recoverable amount of the asscciate and its carrying value.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, and are initially
recoghised at cost.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Bank's entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity operates (“the functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, which is the Bank's functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the date of the statement of financial position, monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies are translated using the closing exchange rate.

Exchange differences resulting from the settlement of transactions at rates different from those at the dates
of the transactions, and unrealised foreign exchange differences on unsettled foreign currency monetary
assets and liabilities are recognised in the income statement.

Exchange differences on non-monetary financial assets are a component of the change in their fair value.
Depending on the classification of a non-monetary financial asset, exchange differences are either
recognised in the income statement (applicable for trading securities), or within other comprehensive
income if non-monetary financial assets are classified as investment. In the case of changes in the fair value
of monetary assets denominated in foreign currency classified as investment, a distinction is made between
translation differences resulting from changes in amortised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation differences related to changes in the amortised cost are
recognised in the income statement, and other changes in the carrying amount, except impairment, are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2022

{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(d) Revenue recognition

{e)

f

(9)

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all interest-bearing instruments on
an accrual basis using the effective interest method based on the actual purchase price. Interest income
includes coupons earned on fixed income investments and accrued discount on treasury bills and other
discounted instruments.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial
liability and of allocating the interest income or interest expenses over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset or financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Bank estimates cash
flows considering the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider future credit losses.
The calculation includes all fees and points paid or received between parties to the contract that are an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and all other premiums or discounts.

Interest income and expense

The Bank accounts for interest income on loans in accordance with Jamaican banking regulations. These
regulations stipulate that, where collection of interest is considered doubtful or where the loan is in non-
performing status (payment of principal or interest is outstanding for 90 days or more), interest should be
taken into account on the cash basis and all previously accrued but uncollected interest be reversed in the
period that collection is doubtful or the loan becomes non-performing. IFRS require that when loans are
impaired, they are written down to their recoverable amounts and interest income is thereafter recognised
by applying the original effective interest rate to the recoverable amount. The difference between the
regulatory and IFRS bases of interest recognition was assessed to be immaterial.

Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income is recognised on the accrual basis. Loan origination fees for loans which are
fikely to be drawn down are deferred, together with related direct costs, and recognised as an adjustment to
the effective yield on the loan. Fees and commissions arising from negotiating or participating in the
negotiation of a transaction for a third party are recognised on completion of the underlying transaction.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.

Income taxes
The Bank is exempt from income tax under Section 12(b) of the Income Tax Act.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with less than
90 days maturity from the date of acquisition including investment securities and fixed term deposits.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase (repurchase agreements) and securities purchased under
agreements to resell (reverse repurchase agreements) are treated as collateralised financing transactions.
The difference between the sale/purchase and repurchasefresale price is treated as interest and accrued
over the life of the agreements using the effective yield method.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h)

Loans and advances and provisions for credit losses
Loans and advances are recognised when cash is advanced to borrowers. They are initially recorded at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Provision for credit losses determined under the requirements of IFRS

The Bank continuously monitors loans or Banks of loans for indicators of impairment. In the event that

indicators are present, the loans or Banks of loans are tested for impairment. A provision for credit losses is

established if there is objective evidence of impairment. A loan or Bank of loans is impaired and impairment

losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a resuit of one or more events that

occurred after the initial recognition of the loan (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event has reduced the

estimated future cash flows of the loan and the amount of the reduction can be reliably estimated. The

criteria that the Bank uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

(iy significant financial difficulty of the obligor;

(i) default or delinquency in interest or principal payments;

(i) having to grant the borrower a concession that would not otherwise be considered due to the
borrower's financial difficulty;

(iv) the probability that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(v) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from the loan portfolio since the initial recognition of the loans, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual loan in the portfolio, including:

a) adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the portfolio; and
b) national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the loan portfolio.



Page 13

Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Loans and advances and provisions for credit losses (continued)

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for loans that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for loans that are not individually significant. iIf the
Bank determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed loan, whether
significant or not, it includes the loan in a Bank of loans with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Loans that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount of the loan and the
present value of estimated future cash flows, including amounts recoverable from guarantees and coilateral,
discounted at the original effective interest rate of the loan. For accounting purposes, the carrying amount of
the loan is reduced through the use of a provision for credit losses account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate.

For the purposes of a collective evaluation of impairment, loans are Banked on the basis of similar credit risk
characteristics (that is, on the basis of the Bank's grading process that considers loan type, industry,
collateral type and past-due status). Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows
for Banks of such loans by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the
contractual terms of the loans being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a Bank of loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the loans in the Bank. Losses over the preceding 12 months are used
as a baseline to determine historical loss experience for loans with credit risk characteristics similar to those
in the Bank. This historical loss experience is then adjusted, if necessary, to reflect broader economic trends
over the most recent 24-month period with a 36-month look back period used on the highest risk portfolios.
Finally, applicable adjustments are made on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects of
current conditions that did not affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not currently exist.

Estimates of changes in future cash flows for Banks of loans should reflect and be directionally consistent
with changes in related observable data and our assessment of changes in the economy from period to
period {for example, changes in unemployment levels, property and motor vehicle prices, or other factors
indicative of changes in the probability of losses in the Bank and their magnitude). The methodology and
assumptions used for estimating future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank to reduce any
differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

When a loan is deemed uncollectible, it is written off against the related provision for credit losses. Such
loans are written off after all the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of the loss has
been determined.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the
debtor's credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed by adjusting the provision for
credit losses. The amount of the reversal is recognised in the income statement.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2022

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(h) Loans and advances and provisions for credit losses (continued)

(i)

Provision for credit losses determined under the Bank of Jamaica regulatory requirements
The effect of the provision for credit losses determined under the Bank of Jamaica regulatory requirements
is to reserve capital. No amounts are booked to the income statement in respect of regulatory provisions.
Provisions calculated based on regulatory requirements that exceed the amounts required under IFRS are
transferred from retained earnings to a non-distributable loan loss reserve in stockholders’ equity.

The specific provision is established for the estimated net loss for all non-performing loans and performing
loans that meet specified criteria. Loans are considered to be non-performing where a principal or interest
payment is contractually 90 days or more in arrears. At the time of classification as non-performing, any
interest that is contractually due but in arrears is reversed from the income statement and interest is
thereafter recognised in the income statement on the cash basis only. The estimated net loss is defined as
the net exposure remaining after deducting the estimated net realisable value of the collateral (as defined by
and determined by the regulations) from the outstanding principal balance of the loan.

Investment securities

Investment securities are classified into the following categories: investment securities at fair value through
profit or loss, investment securities, held-to-maturity and loans and receivables. Management determines
the classification of its investments at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at every reporting
date.

Investment securities at fair value through profit or loss are those which were either acquired for generating
a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer's margin, or are securities included in a portfolio in
which a pattern of short-term profit-taking exists. They are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. They are subsequently carried at fair value. Interest income on
investment securities at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in interest income. All other realised
and unrealised gains and losses are included in gain on foreign currency and investment activities.

Investment securities are those intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and which may be sold in
response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, foreign exchange rates or market prices. They
are initially recognised at fair value (including transaction costs), and subsequently remeasured at fair value.
Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of investment securities are recognised in
other comprehensive income. When the securities are disposed of or impaired, the related accumulated
unrealised gains or losses included in other comprehensive income are transferred to the income statement.

Held-to-maturity securities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that the company has
the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity. On initial recognition they
are measured at fair value, pius any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
they are measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less impairment losses. Any sale
or reclassification of a significant amount of held-to-maturity investments that is not close to their maturity
would result in the reciassification of all held-to-maturity investments as investment, and prevent the
company from classifying investment securities as held-to-maturity for the financial year in which sale or
reclassification occurs and the following two financial years.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

M

)

Investment securities (continued)

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market other than: (i) those financial assets that the Bank intends to sell immediately or
in the short term, which are classified as held for trading, and (ii) those financial assets that the entity upon
initial recognition, designates as at fair value through profit or loss or that it has designated as investment.

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If there is no active
market for a financial asset, the Bank establishes fair value using valuation techniques. These include the
use of recent arm's length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis and other valuation techniques
commonly used by market participants.

Financial assets are assessed at each date of the statement of financial position for objective evidence of
impairment. A financial asset is considered impaired if its carrying amount exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. The amount of the impairment loss for assets carried at amortised cost is calculated as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of expected future cash flows
discounted at the original effective interest rate. The recoverable amount of a financial asset carried at fair
value is the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the current market interest rate for a
similar financial asset.

in the case of equity securities classified as investment, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
below cost is considered an indicator of impairment. Significant or prolonged are assessed based on
market conditions and other indicators. If any such evidence exists for investment financial assets, the
cumulative loss, measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less
any impairment losses previously recognised in the income statement, is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the income statement. Impairment losses recognised on the
equity instruments are not reversed through the income statement.

All purchases and sales of investment securities are recognised at settlement date.

Investment securities are derecognised when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these
assets have ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets are also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and rewards have not
been transferred, the Bank tests control to ensure that continuing involvement on the basis of any retained
powers of control does not prevent derecognition).

Investment property
Investment property is held for long-term rental yields and is, therefore, treated as a long-term investment.

Investment property is measured initially at cost, including transaction costs, and is subsequently carried at
fair value, representing open market value determined annually by the directors or by independent
valuators. Changes in fair values are recorded in the income statement.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

{k)

U

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings are shown at deemed cost less impairment losses, and less subsequent depreciation for
buildings. All other property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's camying amount or are recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Bank and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance costs are charged
to other operating expenses during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated on the straight-line basis at annual rates
that will write off the carrying value of each asset over the period of its expected useful life. Annual
depreciation rates or period over which depreciation is charged are as follows:

Freehold buildings 212%
Computer equipment 20 -25%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 10% - 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Gains or losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in other operating income in the income statement.

Impairment of long lived assets

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles are reviewed for impairment losses whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognised for the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of an asset's net selling price and value in use. For the purpose of the assessing impairment,
assets are Banked at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows.

(m) Financial liabilities

(n)

(o)

The Bank's financial liabilities comprise primarily amounts due to other banks, customer deposits, repurchase
agreements, , other borrowed funds and policyholders' liabilities.

Borrowings

Borrowings, including those arising under securitisation arrangements, are recognised initially at fair value,
being their issue proceeds, net of transaction costs incurred. Subsequently, borrowings are stated at
amortised cost and any difference between net proceeds and the redemption value is recognised in the
income statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective yield method.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it
is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settie the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligation can be made.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

31 March 2022

(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(p) Post-employment benefits
Pension benefits
The Bank operates a retirement plan, the assets of which are generally held in separate trustee
administered funds. The pension plan is funded by payments from employees and by the relevant
companies, taking into account the recommendations of independent qualified actuaries. The Bank
operates a defined benefit plan.

Defined benefit pension plans

A defined benefit pension plan is a plan that defines an amount of pension benefit that an employee will
receive on retirement, usually dependent on one or more factors, such as age, years of service and
compensation.

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position in respect of defined benefit pension plans is
the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the statement of financial position date less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest rates on Government of Jamaica bonds that
are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid and that have terms to maturity
approximating to the terms of the related pension obligation.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, included in staff costs in the income statement, reflects
the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit
changes, curtailments and settlements.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. The cost is included in staff costs in the income statement.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in expenses.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable whenever an employee's employment is terminated before the normal
retirement date or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits.
The Bank recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to either terminate the
employment of current employees according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of withdrawal or to
provide termination benefits as a result of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after statement of financial position date are discounted to present value.
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2. Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

{(a)

(r)

(s)

(t)

{u)

Share capital

Share issue costs

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, for the proceeds.

Dividends on ordinary shares
Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in equity in the period in which they are declared.

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants related to the purchase of property and equipment, or for other capital acquisitions, and
not for the support of operating activities, are recorded in the statement of financial position as capitalisation
reserve and are credited to profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the related
assets.

Intangible assets

Computer software

Costs that are directly associated with acquiring and developing identifiable and unique software products
are recognised as intangible assets. These costs are amortised using the straight-line method over their
useful lives, not exceeding a period of five years. Costs associated with maintaining computer software
programs are recognised as an expense as incurred.

Loans receivable
The cash advanced to a borrower, including any transaction costs, is taken as the fair value of the loan at
the date of disbursement and, accordingly, that is the amount at which the asset is initially recorded.

Leased assets
Assets leased out under operating leases are included in investment properties in the statement of financial
position. Rental income is recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
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3. Financial Risk Management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Bank's risk
management framework. The Bank's overall risk management approach focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Bank’s financial performance through
policies approved by its Board of Directors and implemented by management.

The Board has established committees with responsibility for developing and monitoring the Bank’s risk
management policies in their specified areas. All Board committees report regularly to the Board of Directors
on their activities. The Board committees and their activities are as follows:

(i)

(ii)

iii)

(iv)

Investment, Finance and Loans Committee

This committee is responsible for monitoring market risks that affect the Bank’s investment portfolio;
approving credit requests above specified amounts; ensuring that all credit facilities conform to
standards agreed by the Board; and approving the mix of the Bank's investment portfolio. The
committee is also responsible for approving credit write-offs, specific provisions against financial assets
and the terms for any renegotiating specific loans.

Audit and Corporate Governance Committee

The Audit and Conduct Review Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the Bank’s
risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the risk management
framework in relation to risks faced by the Bank. This committee is assisted in these functions by Audit
Servicest. Audit Servicest undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls
and procedures, the results of which are reported to the Audit and Corporate Governance Committee.

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee aims to develop a disciplined and motivated staff complement through the
Bank's human resource policies. The committee ensures that staff is remunerated at competitive rates
and that employees are properly trained to perform their duties in such a manner as to reduce the risk of
fraud and errors.

Enterprise Risk Management Committee
The Enterprise Risk Management Committee provides risk oversight to the operations of the Bank

through frequent monitoring of the risk implementation policy and strategy, determine the risk tolerance
levels of the Bank and approve risk management reports.
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3. Financial Risk Management {Continued)

(a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign currency, interest rate and security
prices, will affect the Bank's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters while
optimising the returns. The overall responsibility for market risk resides with the Investment, Finance and
Loans Committee along with the Enterprise Risk Management Committee. Market risk exposures are
measured using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change in the nature of the Bank's exposure to market risk or the manner in which it
measures and manages the risk.

(i) Currencyrisk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Bank takes on exposure to address the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing foreign currency
exchange rates on its financial position and cash flows. The Bank has special arrangements with
Bank of Jamaica to facilitate the expeditious liquidation of foreign currency liabilities.

The Bank is exposed to foreign currency risk on transactions that are denominated in currencies
other than the Jamaica dollar. The main currencies giving rise to this risk are the US Dollar and the
Euro.

At the reporting date, the foreign currency assets and liabilities, by currency, were as follows:

2022 2021

uss € uss$ €

000 000 000 ‘000
Cash and cash equivalents 1,115 - 1,130 -
Resale repurchase agreements 17,615 - 17,538 G
Investment securities 25,459 - 28,430 -
Mortgage receivable & CEF - 11,767 -
Loans, net of impairment losses 49,771 - 61,597 -
Total foreign currency assels 93,960 - 120,462 -
Current portion of long-term loans (20,310} (74) - -
Non-current portion of long-term loans (51,915) (218) (99,849) (396)
Total foreign currency liabilities {72,225) {292) {99,849) (396)

Net foreign currency (liabilities)/assets 21,754 (292) 20,613 -
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3. Financial Risk Management {(Continued)
{a) Market risk (continued)
(i}  Currency risk (continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity

The following table indicates the currencies to which the Bank have significant exposures on its
monetary assets and liabilities and its forecast cash flows. The change in currency rates below
represents management's assessment of the possible change in foreign exchange rates. The
sensitivity analysis represents the outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items and
adjusts their translation at the year-end for changes in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes loans and advances to customers, investment securities and deposits. The
correlation of variables will have a significant effect in determining the ultimate impact on market
risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in each variable, variables had to be considered
on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these variables are non-linear.

The exchange rates, as at the reporting date, for the US$ and Euro were US$1: J$152.61
(2021:J$146.27) and €1; J$172.9411 (2021: J$174.40).

2022 2021
% Change in Effect on % Change in Effect on
currency rate profit currency rate profit
$'000 $°000
Strengthening
of the Jamaica dollar:
UsD 2% Revaluation {66,398) 2% Revaluation (60,301)
EURO 2% Revaluation 1,009 2% Revaluation 1,381
Weakening of the Jamaica
dollar
Uso 8% Devaluation 300,976 6% Devaluation 180,909
EUROQ 8% Devaluation (4,035) 6% Devaluation (4,143)

This assumes that all other variables remain constant.
(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

Variable rate instruments expose the Bank to a loss of future cash flow, while fixed rate
instruments expose the Bank to loss in fair value. Interest rate risk is managed by holding
primarily fixed rate financial instruments which form the majority of the Bank's financial assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
(expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{a) Market risk {continued)
(ii} Interest rate risk {continued)

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table indicates the sensitivity to a reasonable possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, on the income statement and stockholders’ equity.

The sensitivity of the profit or loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on net income
based on the floating rate of non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities. The sensitivity of other
comprehensive income is calcutated by revaluing fixed rate investment financial assets for the effects of
the assumed changes in interest rates. The correlation of variables will have a significant effect in
determining the ultimate impact on market risk, but to demonstrate the impact due to changes in
variable, variables had to be on an individual basis. It should be noted that movements in these
variables are non-linear.

Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
Net Profit Equity Net Profit Equity
2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Change in basis points:
Decrease - JMD -50 and USD -850 (160,708) (160,708} {283,354) (283,354)
Increase - JMD +300 and USD +150 064,246 064,246 283,354 283,354

(i) The Bank's exposure to security price risk is insignificant as the Bank’s securities that derive their
value from market prices are not significant.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss. The main financial assets giving rise to credit risk are cash and cash
equivalents, resale agreements, investment securities, advances to associates, loans receivable,
Government of Jamaica recoverables, due from Credit Enhancement Facility Fund, and other receivables.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to credit risk

Current credit exposure is the amount of loss that the Bank would suffer if all counterparties to which
the Bank was exposed were to default at once, without taking account of the value of any collateral
held. This is represented substantially by the carrying amount of financial assets shown in the

statement of financial position.

There has been no change in the nature of the Bank's exposure to credit risk or the manner in which it

measures and manages the risk.

Maximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or other credit enhancements
The maximum exposure to credit risk before taking account of collateral held and other credit

enhancements is as follows:

e  Credit risk exposures relating to items recognised:

This exposure is the carrying amounts in the statement of financial position of financial assets that

are subject to credit risk.

e  Credit risk exposures relating to items not recognised:

Maximum exposure

2022 2021

$'000 $'000

Loan commitments 2,657,058 1,668,357
Guarantees 6,265,856 2,305,499
8,922,914 3,963,856
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)

(i) Exposure to credit risk {continued)

Credit quality is measured and monitored after disbursement primarily by the extent to which

the debtor is current:

. Loans

Direct loans

GOJ infrastructure loans

Financial and agricultural institutions loans

Neither past due nor impaired
Past due but not impaired:

1 to 3 months

3 to 6 months

6 to 12 months

Over 12 months

Past due and impaired

Less allowance for loan losses

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
3,934,848 4,393,863
= 429
11,614,226 11,738,369
15,549,073 16,132,232
15,999,022 16,508,547
6,101 24,945
5,908 4,523
5,598 -
9,624 24172
- 112,078
16,026,254 16,674,266
(477,181) (542,034)
15,549,073 16,132,232
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
(i)} Exposure to credit risk (continued)

« Other amounts receivable- contractual due dates:

Neither past due nor impaired
Due from Government of Jamaica:
Other

+ Other amounts receivable- no contractual due dates:

No due date — deemed not impaired
Due from Government of Jamaica:
Privatisation

Other receivables

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
931,326 768,023
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
110,544 118,907
257,571 237,897
368,115 356,604
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Credit risk {continued)

(i)

(i)

Exposure to credit risk {continued)
The carrying amount, at the reporting date, of loans whose contractual provisions have been
renegotiated was $113,795,644 (2021 - $3,069,682,972).

Management of credit risk

The Bank manages its credit risk primarily by review of the financial status of each counterparty,
and structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted
in relation to one borrower or Bank of borrowers, and to geographical and industry segments. Such
risks are monitored on a revolving basis and are subject to an annual or more frequent review. The
exposure to any one borrower, including banks and brokers/dealers, is restricted by limits covering
on and off-statement of financia! position exposures. Actual exposures against limits are monitored
daily. Exposure to credit risk is managed through regular analysis of the ability of borrowers and
potential borrowers to meet interest payment and principal repayment obligations, obtaining
collateral and corporate and personal guarantees, and by changing lending limits where
appropriate.

Credit risk is managed for specific financial assets in ways that include the following:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are held with financial institutions that are licensed and regulated and
which management regards as strong, and in such a way that there is no significant
concentration. The strength of these financial institutions and the level of concentration are
continually reviewed by management and the Investment, Finance and Loans Committee.

Investment securities and resale agreements

The Bank limits its exposure to credit risk for these assets by investing only with counterparties
that have high credit ratings. Therefore, management's expectation of defaults by any
counterparty is tow.

The Bank has documented investment policies, which serve as a guide in managing credit risk on
investment securities and resale agreements. The Bank's exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continually monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is
spread amongst approved counterparties.
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Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{b} Credit risk (continued)

(i)

(iiif)

Management of credit risk {continued)
Credit risk is managed for specific financial assets in ways that include the following (continued):

Amounts due from Government of Jamaica

Balances with Government of Jamaica are regarded as sovereign debt and risk free investment by
the regulators of licensed deposit taking and other financial institutions. The default risk of
Government of Jamaica is low and, therefore, the Bank does not anticipate any default on the
recovery of these balances.

Loans

The management of credit risk in respect of loans is executed by the management of the Bank.
The Investment, Finance and Loans Committee of the Board of Directors is responsible for the
oversight of the Bank's credit risk and the development of credit policies. There is a documented
credit policy in place, which guides the Bank’s credit process.

Impairment

The company considers the probability of default upen initial recognition of an asset and whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting
period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the company compares the
risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date
of initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information. Especially the following indicators are incorporated:

- internal credit rating

- external credit rating

- actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower's ability to meet its obligations

- actual or expected significant changes in the operating resulits of the borrower

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same borrower

- significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the quality of third-
party guarantees or credit enhancements

- significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the borrower, including changes
in the payment status of borrowers in the group and changes in the operating results of the
borrower.
Macroeconomic information (such as market interest rates or growth rates) is incorporated as part
of the internal rating model.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)
{iii) Impairment (continued)

Credit review process
The Bank identifies changes in credit risk by tracking published external credit ratings.

Loss given default (LGD) parameters generally reflect an assumed recovery rate except when the
security is credit-impaired, in which case the estimate of loss is based on the instrument's current
market price and original effective interest rate.

The credit quality of investment securities has a B3 credit rating.
Company internal credit

rating as at 31 March External Expected
2022 Creditrating creditloss rate

AAA 0.9%

High AA 1.3%

A 2.2%

BBB 7.3%

Moderate BB 10.0%

B 12.2%

ccc 14.0%

Low cC 18.0%

C 30.0%

Credit impaired D 50.0%

The Bank assesses the probability of default of individual counterparties using internal ratings.
Loans are segmented into six rating classes. The Bank's rating scale, which is shown below,
reflects the risk rating assigned:

Credit Score Bands

From To Risk Rating

81 100 Low

7 80 Moderately Low
51 70 Average

41 50 Moderately High
31 40 High

Under 30 Very High
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3. Financial Risk Managemaent (Continued)

{c) Credit risk (continued)

(iii)

Impairment (continued)

Collateral and other credit enhancements held against financial assets
The Bank holds collateral against loans in the form of mortgage interests over properties, lien over
motor vehicles, other registered securities over assets, hypothecation of shares and guarantees.
Estimates of fair value are based on value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing and are
generally not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired. In certain instances,
without foreclosing, the Bank acts upon its lien over motor vehicles and mortgage interest over

properties. The credit quality of loans is as follows:

2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Loans receivable 15,390,231 30,136 605,887 16,026,254
Loss allowance (117,671) (689) (358,821) (477,181)
Carrying amount 15,272,560 29,447 247,067 15,549,074
2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Loans receivable 15,471,282 637,924 565,080 16,674,266
Loss allowance {262,598) {204,831) (74,608) (542,034)
Carrying amount 15,208,684 433,093 490,455 16,132,232
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{b) Credit risk (continued)

{iv)

Amounts arising from ECL
Significant increase in credit risk

When determining whether the risk of defauit on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Bank considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitativeinformation
and analysis, based on the Bank’s historical experience and third party policies including forward-
looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has
occurred for an exposure by comparing:

» the remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date; with
the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated at the time of initial
recognition of the exposure (adjusted where relevant for changes in prepayment
expectations).

The Bank uses three criteria for determining whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk quantative test based on movement in PD;

* qualitative indicators; and
* a backstop of 30 dayspastdue.Credit risk grades:

The Bank allocates each exposure to a credit risk grade based on a variety of data that is
determined to be predictive of the risk of default and applying experienced credit judgment. The
Bank uses these grades in identifying significant increases in credit risk under IFRS 9. Credit risk
grades are defined using qualitative and quantitative factors that are indicative of the risk of default.
These factors may vary depending on the nature of the exposure and the type of borrower.

Each exposure is allocated to a credit risk grade on initial recognition based on available information
about the borrower. Exposures are subject to ongoing monitoring, which may result in an exposure
being moved to a different credit risk grade. The monitoring typically involves use ofthe following
data:

Data from credit reference agencies.
Actual and expected significant changes in the political, regulatory and technological
environment of the borrower or in its business activities.

» Payment record - this includes overdue status as well as a range of variables about payment
ratios.

» Existing and forecast changes in business, financial and economic conditions.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{b) Credit risk (continued)
{iv) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Determining whether credit risk has been increased significantly:
The Bank assesses whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition at each
reporting date. Determining whether an increase in credit risk is significant depends on the
characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower.
Credit risk is deemed to increase significantly where the credit rating of a security decreased by more
than 150 points and if past due between 30 and 90 days. Both quantitative as well as qualitative
considerations are included in determining whether there has been a significantchange in credit risk
(SICR) for the financial instrument since origination. Included in the Bank's assessment of a SICR on

facilities extended to individual counterparties are material decline in credit scores as follows:

Decline in Credit

Loan Types Scores
Cash Secured -60%
Unsecured -30%
Real Estate -50%
Motor Vehicles -40%

As a backstop, the Bank considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs no later thanwhen an
asset is more than 30 days past due. Days past due are determined by counting thenumber of days
since the earliest elapsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due dates
are determined without considering any grace pericd that might be available to the borrower.

If there is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to initial
recognition, then the loss allowance on an instrument returns to being measured as 12-month ECL.
Some qualitative indicators of an increase in credit risk, such as delinquency or forbearance, may be
indicative of an increased risk of default that persists after the indicator itself has ceased to exist.

In these cases, the Bank determines a probation period during which the financial asset is required to
demonstrate good behaviour to provide evidence that its credit risk has declined sufficiently. When
contractual terms of a loan have been modified, evidence that the criteria forrecognising lifetime ECL
are no longer met includes a history of up-to-date payment performance against the modified
contractual terms.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)
{iv) Amounts arising from ECL {continued)

The Bank monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify significant increases in creditrisk by
regular reviews to confirm that:

s the criteria are capable of identifying significant increases in credit risk before an exposure is in
default
the criteria do not align with the point in time when an asset becomes 30 days past due;
the average time between the identification of a significant increase in credit risk and default
appears reasonable;

+« exposures are not generally transferred directly from 12-month ECL measurement to credit-
impaired; and

= there is no unwarranted volatility in loss allowance from transfers between 12-month PD (Stage
1) and lifetime PD (Stage 2).

Definition of default:
The Bank considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full, without recourse bythe
Bank to actions such as realising security (if any is held); or
- the financial asset is more than 80 days past due.

In assessing whether a borrower is in default, the Bank considers indicators that are;

- qualitative: e.g. breaches of covenant;
- gquantitative; e.g. overdue status; and
- based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs into the assessment of whether a financial instrument is in default and their significance may
vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances.

The Bank established an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific losscomponent that
relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance established on a
group basis in respect of losses that have been incurred but havenot been identified on loans subject
to individual assessment for impairment.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{b} Credit risk (continued)
(iv) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)

Loss allowance

The loss allowance recognised is analysed as follow: (prepare for each category of

financialassef)

Loans receivable

2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
$'000 $°000 $000 $°000
Loans receivable
Balance at April 1, 2021 197,988 (8.087) {731,955) (542,034)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (315,659) 7.378 373,134 64,853
Balance at March 31, 2022 (117,671) (688) (358,821) (477,181)
_2021
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
$°000 $°000 $°000 $000
Loans receivable
Balance at April 1, 2020 137,574 122,047 (916,672) (657,051)
Net remeasurement of loss aflowance 60,414 (130,113) 184,716 115,017
Balance at March 31, 2021 197,988 (8,066) {731,956) (542,034)
Stage 1 Total
$°000 $°000
Debt securities
Batance at April 1, 2020 (9.539) (9,539)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 1.31 1,311
Balance at March 31, 2021 {8,228) (8,228)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 10 10
Balance at March 31, 2022 (8.218) (8,218)
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{b) Credit risk (continued)
(iv) Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Loss allowance (continued)

Other receivable

2022
Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
$000 $°000 $°000
Other receivables
Balance at April 1, 2021 (1,988) (255) (2,243)
Additional remeasurement {166,865) - (166,865)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance 693 - 693
Balance at March 31, 2022 (Note 18) (168,160) (255) (168,415)
2021
Stage 1 Stage 3 Total
$'000 $°000 $'000
Other receivables
Balance at April 1, 2020 (1,269) (659) (1,928)
Net remeasurement of loss allowance {719) 404 (315)
Balance at March 31, 2021 (1,888) (255) (2,243)

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Bank incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether the credit risk
of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the measurement of ECL.

The Bank formulates three economic scenarios. a base case, which is the median scenario assigned
a 50% probability of occurring, and two less likely scenarios, one upside and one downside, each
assigned a 20% and 30% respectively, probability of occurring. External information considered
includes economic data and forecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in
Jamaica.

The economic scenarios used as at March 31, 2021 assumed no significant changes in key indicators
for Jamaica for the years ending March 31, 2022 to 2023.

For 2021, forward-looking information was incorporated in the ECL computation by use of a
management overlay. Based on the economic scenario, a proxy of 0.6, 1.1 and 1.6 times ECL was
determined to be appropriate for positive, stable and negative outlooks respectively.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued)

(iv)

v)

{vi)

Amounts arising from ECL (continued)
Measurement of ECLs

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables:

i. probability of default (PD);
i loss given default (LGD); and
ii. exposure at default (EAD)

ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is calculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD.
Lifetime ECL is calculated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Bank estimates LGD parametershased
on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted counterparties. The LGD models
consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and recovery costs of
any collateral that is integral to the financial asset.

For loans secured by properties, Loan-to-Value ratios are a key parameter in determining LGD.LGD
estimates are recalibrated for different economic scenarios and, for real estate lending, to reflect

possible changes in property prices. They are calculated on a discounted cash flow basis using the
effective interest rate as the discounting factor.

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a default. The Bank derives the EAD from
the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed under
the contract and arising from amortisation. The EAD of a financial asset is its gross carrying amount
at the time of default.

As described above, and subject to using a maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets,
the Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
(including any borrower's extension options) over which it is exposed to credit risk, evenif, for credit
risk management purposes, the Bank considers a longer period. The maximum contractual period
extends to the date at which the Bank has the right to require repayment of an advance.

Past due but not impaired loans
These are loans where contractual interest or principal payments are past due but the Bank believes

that impairment is not appropriate based on the quality and value of collateral held or other security
available or the stage of collection of amounts owed to the Bank.

Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
borrower’s financial position and where the Bank has made concessions that it would not otherwise
consider. Once the loan is restructured, it is classified and monitored.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)

{b) Credit risk (continued)

(vii)

{viii)

Write-off policy

The Bank writes off a loan {(and any related allowances for impairment losses) when it determines
that the loan is uncollectible. This determination is usually made after considering information such
as changes in the borrower's financial position, or that proceeds from collateral will not be sufficient
to pay back the entire exposure. The write-off of loans must be submitted to the Investment,
Finance and Loans Committee for recommendation to the full Beard for approval.

Collateral and other credit enhancements held against financial assets

The amount and type of collateral required depends on an assessment of the credit risk of the
counterparty. The Bank has guidelines that set out the acceptability of different types of collateral.
The types of collateral held by the Bank are as follows:

° Loans Mortgages over properties, liens over motor vehicles and other
registered securities, hypothecation of shares, promissory notes,
and guarantees.

. Resale agreements Government of Jamaica securities.
Collateral is generally not held for balances with banks or broker/dealers, except when securities
are held under resale agreements. Collateral is generally not held against investment securities,

and no such collateral was held at the reporting date (2021 - no collateral heid).

Estimates of fair value are based on the value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing, and
generally are not updated except when a loan is individually assessed as impaired.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments. The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at
an acceptable cost, interest-bearing liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the
liguidity of the Bank and its exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

The Bank's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it has sufficient funding to
meet its liabilities when due. A report comparing monthly projected disbursements with expected inflows is
maintained and monitored to achieve maximum efficiency without incurring unacceptable losses.

The Bank’s investment securities are considered readily realisable as they are Government securities.
The Bank also has the ability to borrow in the short-term at reasonable interest rates to cover any shortfall
that may arise from its operations.

Daily reports covering the liquidity position of the Bank, including any exceptions, and remedial action taken,
are submitted regularly to the Managing Director and detailed investment schedules are presented monthly
to the Investment, Finance and Loans Committee.

The Bank is not subject to any externally imposed liquidity limit.

The following table presents the undiscounted contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
interest payments, on the basis of their earliest possible contractual maturity.

Within 3 3to 12 1to 5 g:zezr 5 No specific Total cash Camying
Months Months Years Years maturity flows amount
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

Liabilities
Loans payable 484 454 1,596,659 2,280,755 16,471,767 4,041,798 24,875,433 24,875,433
Other Liabilties - E - - 892,754 892,754 892,757
484,454 1,596 659 2,280,756 16,471,767 4,934,552 25,768,187 25,768,187

2021

Liabilitles

Loans payable 446,928 1,454,045 11,850,446 3,025,107 3,996,433 20,772,959 20,772,959
Other liabilities - = s - 737,427 737,427 737,427

446,928 1,454,045 11,850,446 3,025,107 4,733,860 21,510,386 _ 21,510,386

e

There was no change in the nature of the Bank’s liquidity risk or its approach to managing or measuring the
risk.
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3. Financial Risk Management {Continued)

(d} Operational risk

(e)

Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
Bank's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than credit,
market and liquidity risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally
accepted standards of corporate behaviour. Operational risks arise from all areas of the Bank's operations.

The Bank's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses and
damage to the Bank's reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict
initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to address operational risk is
assigned to senior management within each business unit. This responsibility is supported by the
development of overall standards for the management of operational risk in the following areas:

. requirement for appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of
transactions:;

® requirement for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions;

. compliance with legal requirements;

. documentation of controls and procedures;

. requirement for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls
and procedures to address the risks identified;

. requirement for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial actions;

. development of contingency plans;

. risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with the Bank's standards is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by
internal audit. The results of internal audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit
to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Audit and Conduct Review Committee, which reports
its findings to the Board of Directors.

Capital management

The Bank is not a regulated entity and, therefore, has no externally imposed capital requirements. However,
the Bank seeks to maintain a minimum capital to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern, so that
it can continue to provide benefits to its stakeholders and to maintain the capital base necessary to support
the development of its business. The Bank defines its capital base as share capital, capital and other
reserves and retained earnings. The Board's determination of what constitutes a sound capital position is
informed by the mission of the Bank and the fact of its government ownership. The Board's policy is to
maintain a balance between a sound capital position, the shareholder's demand for dividends, and the risks
associated with borrowing to finance its activities. The policies in respect of capital management are
reviewed from time to time by the Board of Directors.

There were no changes in the Bank's approach to capital management during the year.
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3. Financial Risk Management (Continued)
{f) Fair value estimation (continued)

(i} Measurement of fair values:
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

The company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial assets and
liabilities.

When measuring fair value of an asset or liability, the company uses observable data as far as possible. Fair
values are categorized into different levels in a three-level fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques, as follows:

Level 1

Included in the Level 1 category are financial assets and liabilities that are measured by reference to published
quotes in an active market. A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are
readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service or regulatory
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

Level 2

included in the Level 2 category are financial assets and liabilities that are measured using a valuation technique
based on assumptions that are supported by prices from observable current market transactions, and for which
pricing is obtained via pricing services, but where prices have not been determined in an active market. This
includes financial assets with fair values based on broker quotes, investments in funds with fair values obtained via
fund managers, and assels that are valued using a model whereby the majority of assumptions are market
observable.

Level 3

Included in the Level 3 category are financial assets and liabilities that are measured using
non-market observable inputs. This means that fair values are determined in whole or in part using a valuation
technique (model) based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from observable current market
transactions in the same instrument nor are they based on available market data.

The following table shows the valuation methods used to measure Level 2 fair values as well as any significant
unchservable inputs used.

Financial assets Method

Government of Jamaica J$ securities and s Obtain bid yield from yield curve provided by a

Bank of Jamaica securities recognized pricing source {which uses market-supplied
indicative bids)

s Using this yield, determine price using accepted formula

e Apply price to estimate fair value.

Units in unit trust Prices of units at reporting date as quoted by the Fund
Managers.

There were no financial assets designated at Level 3. No financial assets were transferred from one
level in the hierarchy to anocther.
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4. Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

The Bank's financial statements and its financial results are influenced by accounting policies, assumptions,
estimates and management judgment, which necessarily have to be made in the course of preparation of the
financial statements.

The Bank makes estimates and assumptions that may affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year. All estimates and assumptions required in conformity with IFRS are best
estimates undertaken in accordance with the applicable standard.

Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated and are based on past experience and other factors,
including expectations with regard to future events. Accounting policies and management's judgments for
certain items are especially critical for the Bank’s results and financial position due to their materiality.

Impairment losses on loans and advances

The Bank reviews its loan portfolio to assess impairment at least on a monthly basis. In determining whether an
impairment loss should be recorded in the income statement, the Bank makes judgments as to whether there is
any observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
loans. This evidence may include observable data indicating that there has been an adverse change in the
payment status of borrowers in a Bank, or national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
assets in the Bank. Management uses estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the portfolioc when scheduling its future
cash flows. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future cash
flows are reviewed regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss experience.

Future obligations for post-employment benefits

The cost of these benefits and the present value of the future obligations depend on a number of factors that
are determined by actuaries using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net
periodic cost or income for retirement benefits include the expected long-term rate of return on the relevant plan
assets, the discount rate and, in the case of health benefits, the expected rate of increase in health costs. Any
changes in these assumptions will impact the net periodic cost or income recorded for retirement benefits and
may affect planned funding of the pension plan. The expected return on plan assets assumption is determined
on a uniform basis, considering long-term historical returns, asset allocation and future estimates of long-term
investment returns. The Bank determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year, which
represents the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of estimated future cash
outflows expected to be required to settle the retirement benefit obligations. In determining the appropriate
discount rate, the Bank considered interest rate on government bonds that are denominated in the currency in
which the benefits will be paid, and have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related obligations.
The expected rate of increase of health costs has been determined by comparing the historical relationship of
the actual health cost increases with the rate of inflation. Other key assumptions for the retirement benefits are
based on current market conditions.

Residual value and expected useful life of property and equipment:

The residual value and the expected useful life of an asset are estimated by management on the basis of
certain assumptions. They are reviewed at least at each reporting date, and if expectations differ from previous
estimates, the change is accounted for. The useful life of an asset is defined in terms of the asset's expected
utility to the company.
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5. Net Interest Income

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Interest income
Loans and advances 864,863 939,915
Investment securities 228,883 216,864
Reverse repurchase agreements 318,406 229,853
Cash and deposits and other 6,522 4,932
1,418,674 1,391,564
Interest expense
Loans payables (628,602) (599,979)
Net interest income 790,072 791,585

6. Otherincome

2022 2021
$'000 $000
Administrative fees 16,136 10,730
Commitment fees 54,695 15,472
Dividend income 16,054 20,864
Gain on disposal of property and equipment and investment
property - 1,695
Rental income 92,977 103,682
Foreign exchange gains 339,574 362,071
Recovery of provisions of loans previously written off 390,340 6,727
Public Private Partnership & Privatisation - fees 74,005 60,566
Miscellaneous 45,519 41,457

1,029,300 623,264
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7. Staff Costs

Salaries and wages

Payroll taxes

Pension costs — defined benefit plans (Note 17)
Performance incentive bonus

Other

8. Operating Expenses

Amortisation

Advertising and public relations
Assistance to projects
Auditors’ remuneration

Depreciation

Directors' fees

Legal fees

Professional fees

Motor vehicle expenses

Occupancy costs — including insurance, utilities and repairs

Travelling

Discount on additional advances made to
Harmonisation

Subscription Fees - Reverse Factoring

Other

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
538,507 510,573
36,965 31,570
9,715 12,600
62,703 62,703
86,099 86,514
733,989 703,960
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
8,757 9,009
28,854 38,829
- 665

5,820 5,871
36,553 37,798
2,194 2,219
2,009 1,258
18,258 29,230
4,873 4,831
162,095 148,771
1,239 1,877

- 28,630

29,176 21,621
37,416 40,955
337,253 371,564
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9. Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash

Deposits

Net debt reconciliation

2022 2021
$'000 $'000

95 95
1,637,298 1,705,195
1,637,393 1,705,290

This section sets out an analysis of net debt and the movements in net debt for each of the periods presented.

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 9)

Borrowings — repayable within one year (excluding overdraft)

Borrowings - repayable after one year

Net debt

Cash and liquid investments

Gross debt — fixed interest rates

Net debt

Net debt as at 1 April 2020
Cash flows

Foreign exchange adjustments
Net debt as at 31 March 2021
Cash flows

Foreign exchange adjustments
Net debt as at 31 March 2022

2022 2021

$'000 $'000
1,637,393 1,705,290
(3,519,078) (3,293,798)
(21,206,415) {18,5663,282)

(23,088,100)

(20,151,790)

1,637,393
(24,725,493)

1,705,290
(21,857,080)

(23,088,100)

(20,151,790)

Other assets Liabilities from financing activities
Borrowings Borrowings
Cash! bank due within due after
overdraft 1 yoar 1 year Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,222,674 (3,253,838) (17,497,256) (19.528,420)
451912 (39.960) (1,415,204) (1,003,252}
30,704 - 349,178 379,882
1,705,290 (3,293,798} (18,563,282) (20,151,790}
{136,840} (225,280) (3,334,730) (3,696,850)
68,942 E 691,598 760,540
1,637,392 (3,519,078) (21,206,414 $23.088. 100)
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10. Reverse Repurchase Agreement

The Bank enters into collateralised reverse repurchase agreements which may result in credit exposure in the
event that the counterparty to the transaction is unable to fulfill its contractual obligations. Included within reverse
repurchase agreements is accrued interest receivable of $65,257,000 (2021 - $27,102,000). At the reporting date,
all agreements were collaterised by Government of Jamaica securities.

Included in reverse repurchase agreements are securities with an original maturity of less than 90 days
amounting to $10,831,504,000 (2021 - $5,772,680,000) which are regarded as cash equivalents for the

purposes of the statement of cash flows.

The fair value of the collateral underlying the resale agreements was $11,254,311,914 (2021 - $6,295,387,000)

at the reporting date.

11. Investment Securities

Held to maturity;
Government of Jamaica
Corporate bond
Lean and receivables:
Unquoted equity securities
Investments:
Quoted equity securities
Government of Jamaica bonds

Interest receivables

Remaining term to maturity

Within 3 3to12 1to5 Over Carrying Carrying
months months years 5 years value value
$'000 $°000 $'000 $000 $'000 $'000
2022 2021

- - - 152,190 152,190 193,094

- 50,000 - - 50,000 -

- - - 276,686 276,686 264,910

- - - 233,165 233,165 262,570

- - - 3,486,105 3,486,105 3,530,455
4,198,146 4,251,029

25,829 24,593

4,223,975 4275622
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11. Investment Securities (Continued)

{a) National Debt Exchange

Government of Jamaica (“GOJ") bonds include $136,000,000 of Fixed Rate Accreting Notes ("FRANs").
As part of the National Debt Exchange, GOJ mandated the Bank (and all other state-owned/controlled
entities that held GOJ issued notes) ("Old Notes") to exchange those Old Notes for new notes — FRANSs - as
at February 22, 2013. Old notes with a carrying amount of $170,000,000 at that date were exchanged for
FRANSs with a fair value of $136,000,000, resulting in a loss of $34,000,000. The terms of the FRANs are as

follows:

(i) A holder of Old Notes was issued with J$80 of initial principal value of FRANs for every J$100 of

principal value of Old Notes.

(i)  Interest is payable semi-annually on February 15 and August 15 at a fixed rate of 10% p.a. on the
accreted principal value with the first payment being made on 15 August 2013.

(i)  Accretion for the additional J$20 of principal value will commence in August 2015 as follows:

0.5% of $100 every six months from August 15, 2015 until August 15, 2020,
Thereafter, 1.0% of $100 every six months until August 15, 2026; and

Thereafter, 1.5% of $100 every six months until August 15, 2027.

(iv) The FRANs may be redeemed by GOJ on any interest payment date after August 15, 2020.

(The value at which the FRAN could be redeemed is not included in the offer document}.

12. Investment Properties

Balance at beginning of year
Fair value gains
Balance at end of year

Manor Park apartment, rented
21 Dominica Drive, rented

Income earned from the properties
Expenses incurred by the properties

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
943,114 932,600
200,541 10,514
1,143,655 943,114
43,655 43,114
1,100,000 900,000
1,143,655 943,114
11,034 66,206
(10,695) (10,695)
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12. Investment Properties (Continued)

The properties held are stated at fair value and determined by professional property valuers, Allison Pitter and Co.,
Chartered (Valuation) Surveyors.

The fair value measurement for investment property has been categorized as a Level 3 fair value based on the
inputs to the valuation technique used.

13. Investment in Associates

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Ordinary shares, at cost 250 250
Advances and related accrued interest receivables
Qriginal advances 1,634,617 1,547,210
Additional advances 87,554 87,520
Reimbursements (353) (113)
Gross amount receivables 1,722,524 1,634,617
Unaccredited imputed interest:
Criginal amount of discount {308,720) (308,705)
Discount on additional advances (15) {15)
Total discounts (308,735) (308,720)
Accretion in previous years 308,735 86,529
Unaccreted interest carried forward - (222,191)
Present value of amount receivable 1,722,524 1,412,676
Share of losses
At beginning of year (298,307) (232,492)
Loss recognised during the year (16,352) (65,815)
At end of year {314,659) (298,307)

1,407,865 1,114,369
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13. Investment in Associates (Continued)

The shareholders of Harmonisation Limited entered into a new agreement between themselves to cease charging
interest on their advances and to issue preference shares to the existing shareholders in the ratio of their
outstanding advances. Advances are unsecured with no fixed repayment date. At the reporting date, the

preference shares had not been issued. It is expected that they will be issued when the Joint Venture and
Members Agreements come into force.

As the long-term receivable is non-interest-bearing, interest income has been imputed in accordance with the
requirements of IFRS.

2022 2021

$'000 $'000

Current assets 550,587 418,523
Non-current assets 2,348,624 2,349,852
Current liabilities 33,784 34,480
Non-current liabilities 3,702,928 3,536,316
Revenue 144,237 9,496
Loss from continuing operations {16,352) (65,663)

14. Loans Receivables, Net of Provision for Credit Losses

2022 2021

$'000 $'000

Direct loans to end users 3,934,848 4,393,863
Financial and agricultural institutions loans 11,614,225 11,738,369

15,549,073 16,132,232

Direct loans to end users:

Remaining term to maturity

Within 3to12 1t05 Over Carrying Carrying

3 Months Months Years 5 Years value value

$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000

2022 2021

Loans receivable 89,804 350,756 1,559,989 2,040,777 4,041,326 4,420,681
Interest receivable 66,741 91,553

4.108,067 4,512,234
Less impairment allowance {173,219) (118,371)

3,934,848 4,393,863

The loans bear interest at rates ranging from 4% -10% (2021: 4% - 13%) per annum.
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14. Loans Receivables, Net of Provision for Credit Losses (Continued)

Financial and agricultural institutions loans:

Loans to financial institutions
Interest receivables

Loans to National People's Co-operative Banks
Interest receivabie on Loans to National People's Co-operative Banks

Less impairment losses on loans

Allowance for ECL

At the beginning of the year
Additional ECL during the year
Reversed during the year

At the end of year

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
11,770,036 11,891,499
5636 8,500
11,775,672 11,899,999
140,813 260,583
1,703 1,451
142,516 262,034
11,918,187 12,162,033

(303,962) {423,664)
11,614,225 11,738,369
2022 2021

$'000 $'000
542,034 657,151
315,659 130,014

(380,512) (245,131)

477,181 542034
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15. Due from Government of Jamaica

2022 2021

$'000 $'000

Government of Jamaica - Privatisations 110,544 118,927
Government of Jamaica - Other 931,326 796,460
1,041,870 915,387

Due from Government of Jamaica Privatisafion

This balance represents amounts advanced by the company in the process of divesting assets on behalf of the
Government of Jamaica ("GOJ"), net of the proceeds of the divestments.

Net Net
recoverable/ Amount Proceeds recoverable/
{payable) advanced collected {payable)
$°000 $'000 $'000 $'000
2021 2022
Projects in progress 205,946 63,012 (71,395) 197,563
Projects completed (79,941) - - (79,941)
Others {7,078) - - (7.078)

118 927 63012 __ (71395), 110544
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15. Due from Government of Jamaica (Continued)
Due from Government of Jamaica- Other:

{a) Note receivable:

GOJ signed an agreement dated September 20, 2011 with the company under which GOJ assumed certain
loans owed to the company by three GOJ-owned sugar companies. GOJ issued a non-interest bearing
promissory note to the company in the amount of J$1,004,168,000 repayable over a ten-year period
commencing 1 April 2011 and ending 31 March 2021 in semi-annual instalments. The carrying amount is

made up as follows:

Face value of 10- year interest — free note

Imputed interest

Fair value at date of issue (Note 24f)

Principal portion repaid in instalments received to date

Carrying amount

(b) Exchange losses on loans:

{i) Caribbean Development Bank loans:
Unrealised
Realised

{ii) European Investment Bank loans ;
Realised

{iii) Other loans:
Unrealised

2022 2021
$'000 $°000
- 1,004,168

z (345,056)
. 659,112

: (659,112)
755,428 620,009
38,754 38,754
794,182 658,763
92,710 74,705
44,434 62,992
931,326 796,460
931,326 796,460
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16. Other Receivables

(i)

2022 2021

$'000 $'000
Privatization success fee (i} 1,377,581 1,331,979
BOJ receivables (ii) - 1,462,289
Other receivables 28,603 20,286
World Bank receivables 14,700 15,029
Prepayment (jii} 25,376 15,004
Staff receivables 202,884 189,531
NIBJ recoveries 480,325 479,314
NIBJ provision recoveries (479,314) (479,314)
Less ECL on Access to Finance [note 3(b)iii)] (12,443) -
Less ECL on staff loan receivables [note 3(b)(iii)] (1,550} (2,243)

1,636,162 3,031,965

This represents success fee receivable from the privatization transaction of Norman Manley
International Airport as follows:

2022 2021

$°000 $'000

Amount receivable at beginning of year 1,331,979 U IR
i i i (94,318)

Amount received during period (139,601)

Foreign exchange adjustment 95,554 217,618
Amount discounted 89,649 (263,270)
Amount receivable as year- end 1,377,581 1,331,979

The amount is receivable over a ten-year period and is therefore being discounted at 6.5%, to arrive at the
net present value, being our opportunity cost.

{ii)

(iii)

The Government of Jamaica through the Ministry of Finance and the Public Service provided a loan to
the Development Bank of Jamaica which was originally denominated in US dollar. The loan was
disbursed in JAD and subsequently converted to a JAD facility. Given that the DBJ required the funds
in USD the BO\J facilitated the conversion of these funds after the year end.

Prepayment is comprised as follows:
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16. Other Receivables (Continued)

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
General Insurance 2,122 1,849
Computer Maintenance 5572 1,805
Subscription 14,348 9,135
Professional Fees 2,322 2,305
Stationery 1,012 -
25,376 15,004
17. Employee Benefit Assets
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Assets recognised in the statement of financial position —
Pension scheme 2,565,304 2,403,772
Amounts recognised in profit or loss -
Pension scheme 9,715 12,600
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income —
Pension scheme (11,700) (5,032)

(a)

(b)

The Bank operated a defined-contribution pension scheme for the former employees of The National
Development Bank of Jamaica Limited (NIBJ); it was administered by a company. Benefits to retired
members were based on employee and employer contributions, bonuses and interest credited. The assets
of the scheme were held independently of the Bank's assets in separate trustee-administered funds.
Approval for the winding up of the scheme was received from the Financial Services Commission in June
2012, and, following an actuarial valuation done as at June 2012, all members entitled to benefits received
them in the form of annuities secured through a Company.

As a result of the merger of (NIBJ) and the Bank on 1 September 2006, the employees of NIBJ were
transferred to the Bank and became members of the Development Bank of Jamaica (DBJ) Pension Scheme.
Permission was sought from, and granted by, the FSC for the transfer of the plan assets and benefit
obligations of the NIBJ Scheme and the subsequent winding up of that Scheme, effective as of the merger
date.
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17. Employee Benefit Assets (Continued)

{(c}) The Bank has a defined-benefit scheme, which is administered by Trustees appointed by the Bank and by an
employee-appointed trustee. The scheme, which is open to all full time, permanent employees, is funded by
employer and employee contributions of 6.9% and 5% of pensionable salaries, respectively. In addition, the
employees may voluntarily contribute a further 8.1% of pensionable salaries. The pensionable amount of
annual pension on retirement at normal retirement date shall be that pension equal to 2% of the member’s
final pensionable salary multiplied by his years of pensionable service, plus such amount as may be
determined by the actuary to be the pension equivalent of any voluntary contributions, accumulated with
interest computed to the date of retirement, standing to the credit of the member on the date the pension is to

commence.

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Present value of funded obligations (2,140,408) (1,981,140)
Fair value of plan assets 2,565,304 2,403,772
Assets in the statement of financial position 424,896 422632
The movement in the defined benefit obligation over the year is as follows:
2022 2021
$°000 $'000
Balance at beginning of year 1,981,140 1,803,816
Current service cost 52,092 45,631
Interest cost 169,250 119,458
Re-measurements -
Experience losses 22,036 35,486
Members' contributions 19,054 17,928
Benefits paid (103,164) {41,179)
Balance at end of year 2,140,408 1,981,140
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income:
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Remeasurement of funded abligation (22,036) (35,486)
Remeasurement on plan assets 10,336 30,454
(11,700) {5,032)
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17. Employee Benefit Assets (Continued)

The movement in the defined benefit asset during the year is as follows:

2022 2021

$'000 $°000

Balance at beginning of year 2,403,772 2,221,196
Interest income 202,155 144,622

Re-measurement -
Return on plan assets, excluding amounts

included in interest income 10,336 30,454
Contributions 60,617 57,716
Benefits paid {103,164) (41,179)
Administration expenses {8,412) (9,036)
Balance at end of year 2,565,304 2,403,772

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in the statement of comprehensive income is as follows:

2022 2021

$'000 $'000

Current service cost 34,208 28,728

Interest costs 169,250 119,458
Interest income (202,155) (144,622)

Administration expenses 8412 9,036

Total, included in staff costs (Note 7) 9,715 12,600
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17. Employee Benefit Assets (Continued)

Plan assets are comprised as follows:

2022
Quoted Unquoted Total

$'000 $'000 $°000 %

Unitised investments - 79,555 79,555 3
Government of Jamaica bonds - 845,800 845,800 33.0
Corporate bonds - 145,037 145,037 57
Resale agreements and CDs - 124,099 124,099 4.8
Real estate - 169,929 169,929 6.2
Equity securities 1,197,914 - 1,197,914 46.7
Net current assets - 12,970 12,970 0.5
1,187,914 1,367,390 2,565,304 100

2021
Quoted Unquoted Total

$'000 $'000 $'000 %

Unitised investments - 74,293 74,293 3.1
Government of Jamaica bonds - 887,016 887,016 36.9
Corporate bonds - 169,938 169,938 71
Resale agreements and CDs - 160,710 160,710 6.7
Real estate - 139,663 139,663 5.8
Equity securities 968,111 - 968,111 40.3
Net current assets - 4,041 4,041 0.1

968,111 1,435,661 2,403,772 100
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17. Employee Benefit Assets (Continued)

Expected contributions to the post-employment plan for the year ending 31 March 2022 are $60,617,000

(2021 - $57,716,000).

Movements in the amounts recognised in the statement of financial position:

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Assets at beginning of year 422,632 417,380
Amounts recognised in profit or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income (9,715) (12,600)
Amounts recognised in other comprehensive income {11,700) (5,032)
Contributions paid 23,679 22,884
Assets at end of year 424,896 422 632
The significant actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
2022 2021
Discount rate 8.0% 8.5%
Future salary increases 5.5% 6.0%
Expected pension increase 2.5% 1.5%

Assumptions regarding future mortality are set based on actuarial advice in accordance with published
statistics and experience. These assumptions translate into an average life expectancy in years for a

pensicner retiring at age 60.
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17. Employment Benefit Assets (Continued)
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to changes in the weighted principal assumptions is:

Impact on post-employment obligations

Change in Increase in Decrease in,

Assumption Assumption Assumption

$'000 $'000

Discount rate 0.5% (2.025,871) 2,270,603

Future salary increases 0.5% 2,171,488 (2,112,425)
Expected pension increase 0.5% 2,236,381 (2,053,681)

The above sensitivity analyses are based on a change in an assumption while holding all other
assumptions constant. In practice, this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may
be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the
projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
pension liability recognised within the statement of financial position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change
compared to the previous period.
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18. Intangible Assets

Computer
Software
$°000
At Cost -
At 1 April 2020 57,596
Additions 845
At 31 March 2021 58,441
Additions 5634
At 31 March 2022 64,075
Depreaciation -
At 1 April 2020 41,772
Charge for the year 9,009
At 31 March 2021 50,781
Charge for the year 8,757
31 March 2022 59,538
Net Book Value -
31 March 2022 4,537

31 March 2021 7,660
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19. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost/Valuation
At 1 April 2020
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation
At 31 March 2021
Additions
Revaluation
At 31 March 2022

Accumulated Depreciation -

At 1 April 2020

Charge for the year

Disposals
At 31 March 2021

Charge for the year

At 31 March 2022
Net Book Value -
31 March 2022

31 March 2021

Motor
Freehold Furniture, Vehicles
Land and fixtures, plant Furniture & Computer
Buildings and equipment Equipment Equipment Total
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
1,487,202 270,607 33,432 106,829 1,898,070
- 5,876 - 16,024 21,900
- - {3,005) (2.196) (5,201)
137,922 - - - 137,922
1,625,124 276,483 30,427 120,657 2,052,691
- 792 14,773 1,086 16,651
96,304 - - - 96,304
1,721,428 277,275 45,200 121,743 2,165,646
160,533 214,386 27,790 73,564 476,273
11,788 7,842 2,659 15,509 37,798
- - {3,005) {1,816} {4,821)
172,321 222,228 27,444 87,257 509,250
12,700 7,597 2,200 14,056 36,553
185,021 229 825 29,644 101,313 545,803
1,536,407 47 450 15,556 20,430 1,619,843
1,452,803 54,255 2,983 33,400 1,543,441

The Bank's freehold land and buildings, with a historical cost of $96,116,000 (2021 - 96,116,000), were last
revalued in March 2022 on the basis of an open market valuation, by independent professional valuers. The

excess of valuation over

the carrying value of freehold

land and buildings of $96,304,000

(2021 — $137,922,000) has been credited fo other comprehensive income (included in revaluation reserve)

{Note 24),
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20. Loans Payable (Continued)

{a) Government of Jamaica

In a letter dated January 31, 1985, the Government of Jamaica (“GOJ"} agreed to bear the exchange risk on
loans negotiated and on-lent to the company by the Ministry of Finance and Planning ("MOF& P"). The loans
which are covered by the agreement were on-lent to the company {and are repayable to the Government) in
Jamaica dollars. The repayment to the GOJ is usually done by an off-set against certain amounts due to the
Company by the GOJ.

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

This represents funds received for lending via the People's Co-operative Banks to establish a
Biogas Programme.

This loan represents the GOJ contribution to the company in accordance with certain agreements.
The International Bank for Recanstruction and Development (IBRD) agreement recommends that
the debt/equity ratio does not exceed four times its equity. At March 31, 2022, the financial
position of the company disclosed a ratio of 1.80:1 (2021 - 1.65:1).

This is a loan from the Ministry of Agriculture (MOA) which was on-lent to the National Peoples
Cooperative Bank (NPCB) for on-lending at 1% to the Dairy Sector. The company does not pay
interest on the loan, and does not charge interest on the amount on-lent.

This Line of credit represents J$2,857.6 billion MSME Recovery loan from the Government of
Jamaica under the Serve Jamaica Program. It was fully drawn at the reporting period March
31,2022. interest is payable at the rate of one percent per annum on a quarterly basis. Principal
repayment commences one year from the date of disbursement. Principal is repayable in 36
instalments quarterly commencing October 30, 2022, ending July 30, 2031.

This represents the J$142.4 million Line of credit Go-Digital under the Serve Jamaica Program
from the Government of Jamaica. It was fully drawn down as at the reporting period March 2022,
interest is payable at the rate of 0.25 percent per annum on a quarterly basis. Principal repayment
commences one year from the date of disbursement. Principal is repayable in 36 guarterly
instalments commencing October 3¢, 2022 and ending July 30, 2031.

This represents the J$2 billion Line of credit from the Government of Jamaica being Private Equity
Funds under the Serve Jamaica Program. It was fully drawn down as at the reporting period March
2022 and interest is payable at the rate of 0.25 percent per annum after 5 years.

Principal repayment commences 10 years from the date of disbursement. Principal is repayable in
20 quarterly instalments commencing March 30,2032 and ending December 30, 2036.
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20. Loans Payable {Continued)

{a) Government of Jamaica (continued)

(vi)

{vii)

(viil)

(ix)

(x)

This represents the J$ equivalent of the amount of US$1,916,650, being the amount drawn
down up to the reporting date out of a loan of US$4,600,000 from the Government of Jamaica,
which on-lent money borrowed from the World Bank for the Energy Security and Efficiency
Enhancement Project being managed by the company. Under the terms of the sub-loan:

» Interest is payable at the rate of 6-month LIBOR plus a variable spread computed by
MOF&P, after a moratorium of one year from the date of disbursement.

¢ Principal is repayable in 49 instalments on March 15 and September 15, commencing
March 15, 2022 and ending March 15, 2040,

Loan amount of J$409.728 million was drawn down on the loan of US$4,600,000. The
Government of Jamaica bears the foreign exchange risk on this portion of the loan and this loan
bears interest at a rate of 6 per cent per annum.

The MOF&P has entered into a loan agreement with the International Bank for Reconstruction and
Development referred to as the World Bank to fund the Foundation for Competitiveness and
Growth (FCGP). The PIOJ is the project execution unit; the DBJ carries out the credit functions for
small medium enterprises (SME’s). The GOJ bears the foreign exchange risk on the loan.

This represents US$10 million line of credit, being fully drawn down as at the reporting period
March 2021 from the Government of Jamaica, interest is payable at the rate of 3 percent quarterly.
Principal repayment commences two years from the date of disbursement.

» Principal is repayable in 52 instalments quarterly commencing March 23, 2022 and ending
December 23, 2034,

This represents the J$ equivalent of the amount of US$20 million, being fully drawn down as at
thereporting period March 2021 from the Government of Jamaica, interest is payable at the rate of 4
percent quarterly. Principal repayment commences two years from the date of disbursement.

. Principal is repayable in 52 instalments quarterly commencing April 3, 2022 and ending
January 3, 2035.

This loan from the Inter-American Development Bank (IDB) was on-lent to Jamaica Small Business
to enhance their Climate Change Adaption Programme. No interest is charged on the Loan.
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20. Loans Payable (Continued)

(b) Direct borrowings

(xi)

(i)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

This represents funds borrowed by GOJ under the International Bank for Reconstruction &
Development (IBRD) US dollar Private Investment and Export Development (PIED) Line of Credit
and on-lent to the Bank for on-lending to private enterprises to support the development of export of
goods and services. It bears interest at the rate of 2.82% per annum and this amount will be settled
as part of the debt off-set by the Bank and the MOF&P.

These loans, negotiated by the Bank, are denominated in United States dollars and are repayable
within the next 5 years. The Government of Jamaica has undertaken to bear the exchange risk
associated with the CDB loans except for the 26 ORJ loan, the exchange risk on which is borne by
the Bank.

This represents the balance of Euro 1,629,099 drawn down under an EEC 1.86 million line of credit
granted under a Financing Contract dated April 2, 1986, between the Bank and the European
Community. The loan bears interest at the rate of 1% per annum, and is repayable in 60 semi-annual
instalments, the first of which was due on October 1, 1895. The loan is guaranteed by the
Government of Jamaica

This is a line of credit from the European Investment Bank (EIB) equivalent to Euro 10 million. The
EIB bears the foreign exchange difference on this line. The first tranche carries an interest rate of 7%
and is payable quarterly with eleven instalments ending in January 2021. The second tranche carries
an interest rate of 6.56% payable in twelve equal instalments to September 30, 2021. The borrower
undertakes that the proceeds of the loan shall exclusively be made available to Microfinance
Institutions in order to be on-lent to Final Beneficiaries for the financing of projects.

This amount represents the balance of amounts drawn down under a loan facility of $450 million
received from the National Insurance Fund (NIF) for on-lending to small and medium enterprises
(SME). The loan bears interest at a rate of 4% p.a. and is repayable in March 2022.

(1) This represents the balance of amounts draw down under a loan from PetroCaribe Development
Fund to finance loans to the productive sector. Interest is payable semi-annual at 3% per annum,

(2) This represents the balance of amounts draw down under a loan from PetroCaribe Development
Fund, specific to the Information Communication and Technology Sector (ICT) for the
construction of ICT/Business Processing Outsourcing {BPO) facilities. It bears interest of 2.5% per
annum, paid quarterly over a 15-year period and matures in 2026 with three years moratorium on
principal.
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21. Other Liabilities

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Due to related entities 183,498 173,603
Accrued charges 179,377 141,562
Statutory deductions 10,933 8,941
Other 518,946 467,200
892,754 791,306
22. Share Capital
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Authorised -

1,757,539,000 Ordinary shares 1,757,539 1,767,539

Issued and fully paid, no par value -
1,757,539,000 Ordinary shares at no par value 1,757,538 1,757,639

In accordance with Section 39(7) of the Jamaican Companies Act, 2004, share premium of $98,856,000 is not
included in the Bank's stated capital.
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23. Capital Reserves

2022 2021

$'000 $'000
(a) Funds for capital 1,179,817 1,179,817
(b) Government subvention 83,180 83,180
(c) Self-Supporting Farmers Development Programme 15,941 15,841
(d) Capital grants 7.106 7,106
(e) Other capital reserves — NIBJ 139,336 139,336
H Self-Supporting Jamaica Business Fund (f) 20,311 84,748
(g) Mentors Innovation & Entrepreneurship Program 176 -

(h}  Capital distribution (212,619) {212,619)
1,233,248 1,297,509

(a) Funds for capital

(b)

(c)

This includes amounts totalling $450 million and $500 million received during the years ended March 31,
1998, and March 31, 2009, respectively, from the Government of Jamaica through the Capital Development
Fund, as equity injections to finance the company’s lending programmes.

Government subvention

This represents the Government of Jamaica contribution to the company, of funds received from the
Canadian International Development Agency.

Self-Supporting Farmers Development Programme

This represents the balance of amounts recovered by the company and capitalised as equity under the
terms of the agency agreement.

Under the terms of an Agency Agreement, dated 27 May 1982, between the company and the Government
of Jamaica in relation to the Self-Supporting Farmers Development Programme (SSFDP), it was agreed
that;

(i) Al assetls be transferred to the company.

(i) The portfolio be analysed and administered by the company. Reasonable steps should be taken to
recover loans determined at that time to be doubtful.

(i) All loan recoveries be utilised to assist in the capitalisation of the company and such recoveries be
employed in carrying out the functions of the company including the granting of loans direct to
farmers for agricultural purposes only,

The portfolio of SSFDP previously administered by the company was transferred to the People's Co-
operative Banks (PCB) in 1997 as a contribution to the equity of those banks. This balance represents
collections under the SSFDP portfolio prior to the portfolio being transferred to the PCB in 1997.
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23. Capital Reserves (Continued)

(i)

@

(k)

()

Capital grants

These represent the EUR 200,000 received from the European Investment Bank (EIB) for the provision of
Technical Assistance {TA) funding to microfinance sector.

Other capital reserves

This represents gain on the sale of investments and rights issue, as well as capital grants, transferred from
NIBJ.

Self-Supporting Jamaica Business Fund

The Jamaica Business Fund is a Supply Chain Grant Fund which supports the improvement in productivity of
selected supply chains. The resources are disbursed to the DBJ by the Planning institute of Jamaica (PIOJ)
for distribution over the life of the projects.

The Mentors for Innovation & Entrepreneurship Programme (MIEP)

MIEP provided business mentorship by industry experts to high-growth potential business innovative products
or services. The support to the entrepreneurs is provided though technical experts and business
intermediaries; able to assist them in reducing the barriers to the growth and development of their business.

{m) Capital Distribution

Interim dividend, {being capital distribution) of 0.12 cents per share, paid in November 2012 to the Accountant
General Department
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24. Other Reserves

(@)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
M

(g)

Fair value reserve

General reserve — Equalisation Fund
Revenue reserve

Special reserve

Revaluation

Technical assistance reserve

Employee benefits reserve

RESTATED

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
350,954 581,801
957,597 957,597
2,539,391 2,539,391
3123 3,123
1,571,004 1,474,788
285,105 247,758
53,635 65,335

5,760,899 5,869,793
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24. Other Reserves (Continued)
(a) Fair value reserve

This represents unrealised gain in fair value of investment securities made up as follows:

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
At beginning of year 581,801 32,500
(Loss)/Gain on GOJ Bonds during the year (230,847) 549,301
At end of year 350,954 581,801

(b) General reserve - Equalisation Fund

This reserve was established to absorb exchange losses on loans denominated in foreign currency which
were negotiated directly by the company. A minimum of 20% of profit for the year (after crediting exchange
gains but before crediting profits from other transfers) was transferred to the reserve. No transfer was made
during the year as the loan to which the requirement for this transfer applies has been repaid.

(i) Exchange equalisation

The maintenance of this reserve was a requirement of a lending agreement between the company
and the European Investment Bank which provided, during the period of the lending agreement, for
the annual transfer to the exchange equalisation account of a portion of the interest differential on
loans funded from the proceeds of the loan received under the lending agreement. This loan has
been repaid and no further transfers are being made.

{c) Revenue reserve

This represents an accumulation of a minimum of 40% of profits transferred over the years (after other
transfers) to this reserve.

The company transferred $250 million from this reserve to the Credit Enhancement Facility Fund during 2010,
which was used as start up capital for the Fund.

(d) Special reserve

Exchange Equalisation Total
2022 2021 2022 2021
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Balance at beginning of year 3,123 3,123 3,123 3,123
Balance at end of year 3,123 3,123 3,123 3,123

{e} Revaluation reserve

This represents unrealised surplus on the revaluation of land and buildings.



Development Bank of Jamaica Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements
31 March 2022
{expressed in Jamaican dollars unless otherwise indicated)

Page 78

24, Other Reserves (Continued)

{f} Technical assistance reserve

i. This represents the transfer from retained earnings of an amount equivalent to the discounted present
value of the non-interest-bearing, 10-year note issued by GOJ consequent on its assumption of the
loans due from three GOJ-owned sugar companies and previously written-off by the company, as set
out in note 15 (a). The Board of Directors has decided that, together with certain funds from multilateral
agencies, the cash received from GOJ under the note will be used as seed funding to strengthen
various institutions. This will be monitored by the Institutional Strengthening and Research Division.

ii. This represents 20% of profit transferred to the Technical Reserves as per Board Decision.

Original amount assumed by the GOJ
Imputed interest

Original amount transferred from retained earnings

interest transferred from retained earnings - Previously
- During year
- To date
Gross accumulated resources at end of year
Utilised - Previously
- During year
- To date

Net at end of year

(g) Employee benefits asset reserve

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
1,004,168 1,004,168
(345,056)  (345,056)
659,112 659,112
828,348 719,392
175,979 108,956
1,004,327 828,348
1663439 1,487,460
(1,239,704)  (1,125,130)
(138,630) (114,574)
(1,378,334)  (1,239,704)
285,105 247,758

This represents the cumulative changes in the employee benefits asset recognised in other comprehensive

income.
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25. Dividends — paid to the Accountant General Department

2022 2021
$'000 $'000

Interim dividends -
1.920 cents per stock unit — 14 October 2021 34,000 -
1.98 cents per stock unit — 15 October 2020 - 35,000

34,000 35,000

26. Related Party Transactions and Balances

{a) Definition of related party

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosure as the “reporting entity” in this case the Bank).

(Y A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the Bank if that person:

M
(@)

(3)

has control or joint control over the Bank;
has significant influence over the Bank; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the Bank or of a parent of the Bank.

(i)  An entity is related to the Bank if any of the following conditions applies:

(M

()

3
(4)

(%)

(6)
7

the entity and the Bank are members of the same Bank (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others),

one entity is an associates or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a Bank of which the other entity is member);

both entities are joint venture of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity or an associate of the third
entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the Bank
or an entity related to the Bank;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified in (i} and,

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent entity}.

A government related entity is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by
a government. A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Bank and a related party, regardless of whether a price is charged.
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26. Related Party Transactions and Balances {Continued)

(b) Related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with government related entities and associated companies:

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
(i) Otherincome:
Other income — rental: Government related entities 88,135 94,147
Other income — administrative fees: Government related entities 9,650 9,300
2022 2021
$'000 $'000
(i) Other expenses:
Discount on financial asset: Government related entities (89,649) 263,270

{c) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel comprise those persons having authority and responsibility for planning,
directing and controlling the activities of the Bank, directly or indirectly, including the Directors and the
members of the senior or executive management of the Bank.

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Salaries and other short- term employee benefits 161,080 149,865
Statutory payroll contributions 8,397 7,631
Pension benefits 4,545 4,359

174,022 161,855

Directors' emoluments:
Fees 2,194 2,219

Management remuneration
{included above}- current year 26,142 25,862
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26. Related Party Transactions and Balances (Continued)
{d) Related party transactions

2022 2021
$°000 $'000
{1} Loans:
Government related entities 4186 35,424
Associated companies 1,402,355 1,314,698
{2) Interest receivable:
Associated companies 319,854 319,854
{3) Staff loans receivable 34,680 34,107
(4) Other receivable 2141951 2,185,999

et Sl L=y

Investment in related entities

2022 2021
$'000 $'000
Caribbean Mezzanine Fund 235,100 219,405
CariCRIS 7,630 7,313

27. Contingencies and Commitments

(@) As at 31 March 2022, there were outstanding commitments to disburse loans totalling approximately
J$1,475.1 million and US$7.7 million (2021 - J$ 120 million and US$10.5 million).

{b) The Bank had capitat commitments, in respect of projects being undertaken, totalling approximately $Nil
(2021 - $32.6 million).

(c) As at 31 March 2022, the bank had commitments to pay Technical Assistance grant in the amount of
J$451.9 million.

The Bank is subject to various claims, disputes and legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business.
Provision is made for such matters when, in the opinion of management and its legal advisors, (1) it is probable
that a payment will be made by the Bank, and (2) the amount can be reasonably estimated.

The Bank has not provided for those claims against it in respect of which management and legal counsel are of
the opinion that they are without merit, can be successfully defended, or will not result in material exposure to its
financial position.
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28. Restatement

The Credit Enhancement Facility Fund (“the Fund”), which was established with effect from July 2009, is an
arrangement between the Approved Financial Institutions ("AFI") and the Bank, which is aimed at providing
partial collateral guarantees to AFls for loans to Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (*SMEs"} which do not
meet the full collateral requirements, and the Fund was set up as a part of the arrangements. Losses arising from
these guaranteed loans are shared between the Bank and the AFls.

During the year, the Bank's reversed profits amounting to $759,063,000 that was being recorded in the books of
the Bank since 2009. The Trust deed states that the Fund is an independent entity reporting to a Board of
Trustees and governed by the trust deed. The balance as at 31 March 2020 was J$577,088,000 and amounted
to J$181,975,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021. Amounts reflected after the restatement are actual
receivables from the Fund.

The tables below reflect the effect of the above restatements of financial position for the year ended March 2020.

As previously Effect of

stated Restatements As Restated
ASSETS 2020 2020

($'000) ($'000)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,222,674 - 1,222,674
Securities - Resale Agreements 7,095,295 - 7,095,295
Investment Securities 3,232,035 - 3,232,035
Investments in Property 932,600 - 932,800
Investments in Associated Companies 1,121,408 - 1,121,408
Loans receivables 15,927 416 - 15,927,416
Due from Government of Jamaica 772,142 - 772,142
Credit Enhancement Facility Fund 585,339 (577,088) 18,251
Other Receivables 1,743,160 - 1,743,160
Retirement Benefit Asset 417,380 - 417,380
Intangible assets 15,824 - 15,824
Property Ptant and Equipment 1,421,797 - 1,421,797
Taxation recoverable 393,036 - 393,036
Total Assets 34,880,106 {577,088) 34,313,018
LIABILITIES
Loans Payable 20,772,959 - 20,772,959
Other 737,427 - 737,427
Total Liabilities 21,510,386 - 21,510,386
EQUITY
Share Capital 1,757,539 - 1,757,539
Share Premium 98,856 - 98,856
Capital Reserves 1,212,761 - 1,212,761
Other Reserves 5,773,742 {577,088) 5,196,654
Retained Earnings 4,536,822 - 4,536,822
Total Equity 13,379,720 {577,088) 12,802,632
Total Liability and Equity 34,880,106 {577,088) 34,313,018
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28. Restatement (Continued)

The tables below reflect the effect of the above restatement on the statement of comprehensive income for the

year ended March 2021.

As previously Effect of
stated Restatements As Restatad
2021 2021
($°000) ($'000)
Operating Income
Interest income 1,391,564 - 1,391,564
Interest expense (599,979) - {599,979)
Net interest income 791,585 - 791,585
Appreciation in fair value on investment property 10,514 - 10,514
Gain on sale of investments 173,995 - 173,995
impairment recovery on financial assets 119,108 - 119,108
Other income 623,264 - 623,264
1,718,466 - 1,718,466
Operating Expenses
Staff costs {703,960) - (703,960)
Impairment losses {263,270) - (263,270)
Other operating expenses (371,564) - (371,564)
(1,338,794) - (1,338,794)
Operating Profit 379,672 - 379672
Share of losses of associates (65,815) - (65,815)
Profit from Credit Enhancement Facility Fund 181,975 (181,975) -
Net Profit 495,832 {181,975) 313,857
Other comprehensive income, het of taxes
Items that will never be reclassified to statement of
comprehensive income
Re-measurement of employee benefits asset (5,032) - {5,032)
Realised fair value gain on investment through OCI 549,301 - 549,301
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 137,922 - 137,922
682,191 - 682,191
1,178,023 {181,975) 996,048
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28, Restatement (Continued)

The tables below reflect the effect of the above restatement on the statement of financial position for the year

ended March 2021.

As previously Effect of
stated Restatements As Restated
2021 2021

ASSETS {$'000) ($000)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,705,280 - 1,705,290
Securities - Resale Agreements 5,799,782 - 5,799,782
Investment Securities 4275622 - 4,275,622
Investments in Property 943,114 - 943,114
Investments in Associated Companies 1,114,369 - 1,114,369
Loans receivables 16,132,232 - 16,132,232
Due from Government of Jamaica 915,387 - 915,387
Credit Enhancement Facility Fund 791,468 {759,063) 32,405
Other Receivables 3,031,965 - 3,031,965
Retirement Benefit Asset 422,632 - 422,632
Intangible assets 7,660 - 7,660
Property Plant and Equipment 1,543,441 - 1,543,441
Taxation recoverable 454,907 - 454 907
Total Assets 37,137,869 (759,063) 36,378,806
LIABILITIES
Loans Payable 21,857,080 - 21,857,080
Other 791,306 - 791,306
Total Liabilities 22,648,386 - 22,648,386
EQUITY
Share Capital 1,757,539 - 1,757,539
Share Premium 98,856 - 08,856
Capital Reserves 1,297,509 - 1,297,509
Other Reserves 6,628,856 (759,063) 5,869,793
Retained Earnings 4,706,723 - 4,706,723
Total Equity 14,489 483 {759,063) 13,730,420
Total Liability and Equity 37,137,869 {759,063) 36,378,806
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29, Impact of COVID-19 on the operations of the Bank

The World Health Organization declared the Coronavirus (COVID-19) outbreak a pandemic on March 11, 2020
and the Government of Jamaica declared the istand a disaster area on March 13, 2020. The pandemic and the
measures to control its human impact have resulted in disruptions to economic activity, business operations and
asset prices.

In an effort to reduce the impact of COVID 19 on its operations, the Bank implemented several measures, some
of which are:

(i} Employees were resourced with technologies enabling them to work from home and where employees had
to visit the office, the necessary sanitation and other protocols were put in place.

(ii) The Bank facilitated a two (2) month moratorium on interest and principal to direct loan clients (largely BPO
developers) with interest being capitalized and the tenure of the loans extended.

To allow sub-borrowers some relief, the Bank reduced its interest rate charged on existing loans to the
Approved Financial Institutions (AFIs) by 0.75% for 2 months (April and May 2020) on the condition that this
reduction be passed on to the sub-borrowers.

To make the CEF more aftractive to AFls, in meeting the needs of Micro, Small Medium Enterprises (MSMEs)
during this period, several improved adjustments were offered for one year only - the 2020/21 financial year.

The Bank has grant funding available under its Voucher for Technical Assistance programme to update
business and marketing plans and acquire software among other services through the approved Business
Development Organisations. The Board of Directors is available to provide the necessary business support to
the MSME

community during this time.

Generally, the pandemic has not otherwise impacted the operations of the Bank significantly.



